
In the United States District Court for  
The Western District of Oklahoma

Douglas Mastriano 
Plaintiff, 

v. 

Defendants

CIVIL CASE NO. ____________________ 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Civil Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt 
Organizations (RICO) Case 

Sherman Act Violations 

Complaint 

1. Introduction

CIV-24-567-F
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II.  Jurisdiction and Venue 
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8. Parties 
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Factual Allegations 
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Count One 
Violation of Civil Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO) 

18 U.S.C. 1962(c) 
Conduct 
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Count Two 
Violation of Civil Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO) 

18 U.S.C. 1962( ) 
Civil Conspiracy 
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Count Three 

Sherman Anti-Trust Act Violation 

Unreasonable Restraint on Trade Regarding PhD 

Case 5:24-cv-00567-F   Document 1   Filed 05/31/24   Page 21 of 31



Case 5:24-cv-00567-F   Document 1   Filed 05/31/24   Page 22 of 31



Count Four 

Sherman Anti-Trust Act Violation 

Unlawful Tying of PhD To Elections and Book Sales 

Case 5:24-cv-00567-F   Document 1   Filed 05/31/24   Page 23 of 31



Case 5:24-cv-00567-F   Document 1   Filed 05/31/24   Page 24 of 31



Count Five 

Fraud 
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Count Six 

Aiding and Abetting  

Breach of Fiduciary Duty 
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Count Seven 

Breach of Contract 

Count Eight 

Negligence 
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Count Nine 

Defamation 
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Request for Relief 
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Unsworn Plaintiff’s Verification Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1746 

I DECLARE AND VERIFY, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT THE 
FOREGOING FACTS AND MATTERS ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST 
OF MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION AND BELIEF. 

Executed on: 

 

Colonel Douglas Mastriano (USA, ret.) 
 

Respectfully submitted this 31st Day of May, 2024. 

 
/s/Daniel L. Cox  
Lead Counsel  
Daniel L. Cox 
U.S. Western District Oklahoma Bar No. 2490 
THE COX LAW CENTER, LLC 
P.O. Box 545 
Emmitsburg, MD 21727 
Ph: 410-254-7000 
E-mail: dcox@coxlawcenter.com 
Lead Counsel for Plaintiff 

 
Richard White, Esq. 
Barber & Bartz 
Tulsa, OK  
Ph: 918-599-7755 
E-mail: rwhite@barberbartz.com  
U.S. Western District of Oklahoma Bar No. 9549 
Local Counsel for Plaintiff 

 

 
DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury for all issues so triable. 
 

/s/Daniel L. Cox 
Counsel for Plaintiff 
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